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RESOURCES DEFENSE COUNCIL, TERESA L DEPPNER, CLERK
U.S. District & Bankruptcy Courts

Plaintiffs, Southern District of WestVirginia

v. CIVIL ACTION NO. '31 o,y- 28"i'
COLONEL WILLIAM BULEN, District
Engineer, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
Huntington District and LIEUTENANT GENERAL
ROBERT B. FLOWERS, Chief of Engineers and
Commander of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

INTRODUCTION

1. This action is a facial challenge to Nationwide Permit 21 (NWP 21), a

general permit issued pursuant to section 404(e) of the Clean Waier Act (CWA), 33

U.S.C. § 1344(e), by officials of the United States Army Corps of Engineers (the Corps),

for the disposal of waste rock and dirt and other mining wastes associated with coal

mining activities into the waters of the United States. The action also challenges

individual authorizations by Defendants as applied to individual discharges in southern

West Virginia.

2. By issuing NWP 21, and authorizing waste disposal activities under it,

Defendants have violated the substantive and procedural requirements of section 404 of

the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, and its implementing regulations, the National

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq., and the Administrative



Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706 et seq., by acting arbitrarily, capriciously,

and contrary to law.

3. Plaintiffs ask the Court to (1) declare that Defendants have violated the

statutory and regulatory duties described in this Complaint, (2) enjoin Defendants from

authorizing, pursuant to NWP 21, further disposal of mining rock and dirt into valley fills

associated with surface mines or other discharges of mining waste into waters of the

United States, (3) enjoin the Defendants from authorizing, pursuant to NWP 21,

discharges associated with the individual mining permits named in this complaint, (4)

enjoin Defendants from authorizing Section 404 discharges for which they have not

required sufficient mitigation, (5) enjoin Defendants from authorizing further discharges

pursuant to NWP 21 until they have completed an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)

for NWP 21 that complies with NEPA, (6) award to Plaintiffs their costs and expenses,

including reasonable attorneys' and expert witness fees.

PARTIES

4. Defendant Lieutenant General Robert B. Flowers is the Chief of

Engineers and Commander of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. He is charged with the

supervision and management of all Corps decisions and actions, including the evaluation

of Corps decisions and actions under NEPA and Section 404 of the CWA, which are the

subject of this lawsuit.

5. Defendant Colonel William Bulen is the District Engineer for the

Huntington District office of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in Huntington, West

Virginia. The District office is responsible for issuing permits for the discharges of
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dredged and fill material in Kentucky and West Virginia under Section 404 of the CWA,

including the proposed discharges at issue in this case.

6. Plaintiff Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition is a nonprofit organization

incorporated in Ohio. Its principal place of business is in Huntington, West Virginia. It

has approximately 1000 members. Its mission is to organize and maintain a diverse

grassroots organization dedicated to the improvement and preservation of the

environment through education, grassroots organizing and coalition building, leadership

development and media outreach. The Coalition has focused on mining issues and is a

leading source of information about environmental issues related to mountaintop removal

coal mining in West Virginia.

7. Plaintiff Coal River Mountain Watch is a local nonprofit membership

organization in southern West Virginia. Its mission is to establish social, economic and

environmental justice in the southern coalfields of West Virginia, to keep communities

intact and to improve the quality of life in these communities. C0al River Mountain

Watch is a local leader in environmental and community issues related to the impacts of

mountaintop removal coal mining.

8. Plaintiff Natural Resources Defense Council ("NRDC") is a national non-

profit membership corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York, with

offices in New York, Washington, D.C., San Francisco, and Los Angeles. NRDC has

over 550,000 members nationwide, including over 1,400 individual members residing in

the State of West Virginia. NRDC is dedicated to the preservation, protection and

defense of the environment, its wildlife and natural resources, and actively supports

effective enforcement of the Clean Water Act on behalf of its members.



9. Plaintiffs' members will suffer injuries to their aesthetic, recreational,

environmental and/or economic interests if Defendants continue authorize mining

activities that do not comply with the law. Members of Ohio Valley Environmental

Coalition, Coal River Mountain Watch and NRDC are injured by Defendants' issuance

of NWP 21 and related authorizations pursuant to NWP 21 in West Virginia, including

those listed in paragraph 47 below. Their aesthetic, environmental, and recreational

interests would be adversely affected by the mines' environmental impacts, including

changes to the landscape, elimination of forests, filling of streams, and discharges of air

and water pollutants because they live and/or recreate and use and enjoy areas and waters

near these areas. Their economic interests would be harmed because the mines would

reduce the economic value of private property and create a nuisance to the plaintiffs.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. This action arises under the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 etseq.,NEPA, 42

U.S.C. §§ 4321 etseq., the APA, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706, and the All Writs Act, 28 U.S.C.

§ 1651(a). The Court has subject matter jurisdiction by virtue of 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,

1361, 1551, 2201 and 2202.

11. Venue is appropriate in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §

1391(e) because the activities complained of are located in the Southern District Of West

Virginia and because the Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition and the Army Corps of

Engineers Huntington District office are located in Cabell County, West Virginia.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

12. Congress enacted the CWA in order to "restore and maintain the chemical,

physical, and biological integrity of the Nation's waters." 33 U.S.C. § 125 l(a). To
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accomplish this goal, the CWA prohibits the discharge of any pollutant, including

dredged spoil or other fill material, into navigable waters unless authorized by a CWA

permit, ld. § 1311(a).

13. Section 404 of the CWA authorizes the Secretary of the Army to issue

permits, in certain circumstances, allowing the discharge of dredged or fill material into

the navigable waters of the United States. ld. § 1_44(a). The Secretary of the Army acts

through the Chief of Engineers of the Corps. ld. § 1344(d); 33 C.F.R. § 323.6(a).

14. The Corps is authorized to issue two types of permits under section 404:

individual permits and general permits. Id. § 1344(a)-(e).

15. Individual permits are issued following a "case-by-case evaluation of a

specific project involving the proposed discharge(s)." 30 C.F.R. § 323.2(g).

16. Under section 404(e) of the CWA, Congress authorized the Corps to issue

general permits on a state, regional or nationwide basis in limited circumstances for

certain activities having minimal impacts, in lieu of individual pemlit processing. 33

U.S.C. § 1344(e).

17. Under the CWA, prior to issuing a general permit, the Corps must make

three determinations. First, it must determine that "the [permitted] activities.., are

similar in nature." ld. § 1344(e)(1) Second, it must determine that the activities "will

cause only minimal adverse environmental effects when performed separately." hi. Third,

it must determine that the activities "will have only minimal cumulative adverse effect

[sic] on the environment." ld; see also 33 C.F.R. § 230.7 (reiterating that the permitting

authority must make these three determinations).



18. Furthermore, general permits must comply with the "404(b)(1)

Guidelines" (the Guidelines), published by EPA at 40 C.F.R. Part 230, must "set forth the

requirements and standards which shall apply to any activity authorized by such general

permit." 33 U.S.C. § 1344(e)(1)(A)-(B). The Guidelines set forth substantive and

procedural requirements with which the Corps must comply in order to issue a general

permit under section 404(e) and to authorize individual activities under section 404.

19. Substantively, when issuing a general permit, the Corps must comply with

40 C.F.R. §§ 230.10 & 230.11. See 40 C.F.R. § 230.7(b)(1).

20. Under 40 C.F.R. § 230.10(c), "no discharge of dredged or fill material

shall be permitted which will cause or contribute to significant degradation of the waters

of the United States." The Guidelines further provide that significant adverse effects on

human health or welfare; aquatic life and other water dependent wildlife; aquatic

ecosystem diversity, productivity, and stability; or recreational, aesthetic, and economic

values are effects contributing to significant degradation. 40 C.F.R. § 230.10(c)(1) (4).

21. Under 40 C.F.R. § 230.10(d), "no discharge of dredged or fill material

shall be permitted unless appropriate and practicable steps have been taken which will

minimize potential adverse impacts of the discharge on the aquatic ecosystem.'"

22. Because authorizations pursuant to nationwide permits may not be granted

by the Corps if the potential discharges will have more than minimal individual and

cumulative impacts on the environment, 30 U.S.C 1344(e), the Corps may not, when

authorizing specific activities pursuant to nationwide permits, use mitigation to

circumvent this requirement by "minimizing" impacts from discharges that will have

more than minimal individual and cumulative adverse impacts on the envirotaement.
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23. Under 40 C.F.R. § 230.11, the Corps must make additional factual

determinations before issuing a discharge permit. These determinations include the nature

and degree of effect that the discharge will have on (1) the substrate of the disposal site,

(2) water circulation, (3) turbidity, (4) contaminants, (5) aquatic ecosystems and

organisms, as well as (6) cumulative and (7) secondary effects on the aquatic ecosystem.

Id. § 230.11 (a)-(e), (g)-(h).

24. Procedurally, the Guidelines require the Corps to "set forth in writing an

evaluation of the potential individual and cumulative impacts to be regulated under the

General permit" in order to reach the determinations required by statute and described

supra in Paragraph 13 of this complaint. 40 C.F.R. § 230.7(b). Furthermore, the

Guidelines require that this "evaluation must be completed before any General permit is

issued, and the results must be published with the final permit." ld. (emphasis added).

25. The evaluation described supra in Paragraph 21 must be based upon

consideration of the substantive requirements of the Guidelines described supra in

Paragraphs 18, 19, and 20. 40 C.F.R. § 230.7(b)(1).

26. The Guidelines provide additional requirements for this pre-issuance

evaluation, including that it must include "a precise description of the activities to be

permitted under the General permit, explaining why they are similar in nature and in

environmental impact to warrant regulation under a single General permit" and an

estimate of the number of activities that will be authorized under the permit. 40 C.F.R. §

230.7(b)(2)-(3).

27. NWP 2l, reissued effective March 18, 2002, permits "[d]ischarges of

dredged or fill material into waters of the US associated with surface coal mining and



reclamation operations provided the coal mining activities are authorized by the DOI,

Office of Surface Mining (OSM), or by states with approved programs under Title V of

the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 and provided the permittee

notifies the District Engineer in accordance with the 'Notification' General Condition. In

addition, to be authorized by this NWP, the District Engineer must determine that the

activity complies with the terms and conditions of the NWP and that the adverse

environmental effects are minimal both individually and cumulatively and must notify

the project sponsor of this determination in writing. The Corps, at the discretion of the

District Engineer, may require a bond to ensure success of the mitigation, if no other

Federal or state agency has required one. For discharges in special aquatic sites, including

wetlands, and stream riffle and pool complexes, the notification must also include a

delineation of affected special aquatic sites, including wetlands .... In determining the

need for as well as the level and type of mitigation, the District Engineer will ensure no

more than minimal adverse effects to the aquatic environment occur. As such, District

Engineers will determine on a case-by-case basis the requirement for adequate mitigation

to ensure the effects to aquatic systems are minimal. In cases where OSM or the state has

required mitigation for the loss of aquatic habitat, the Corps may consider this in

determining appropriate mitigation under Section 404." 67 Fed. Reg. 2020, 2081 (Jan. 25,

2002).

28. The Corps must review notifications by applicants of proposed activities

under general permits and "may add activity-specific conditions to ensure that the activity

complies with the terms and conditions of the [nationwide permit] and that the advcrse
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impacts on the aquatic environment and other aspects of the public interest are

individually and cumulatively minimal." 33 C.F.R. § 330.1 (e)(2).

29. NEPA is the "basic national charter for protection of the environment." 40

C.F.R. § 1500.1 (a). Its purpose is "to help public officials make decisions that are based

on understanding of environmental consequences, and take actions that protect, restore,

and enhance the environment." Id. § 1500.1 (c). The Council on Environmental Quality

("CEQ") -- an agency within the Executive Office of the President -- has promulgated

regulations implementing NEPA, which have been adopted by the Corps. See 40 C.F.R.

§§ 1500-1508; see also 57 Fed. Reg. 43188 (Sept. 18, 1992).

30. To accomplish its purpose, NEPA requires that all agencies of the federal

government must prepare a "detailed statement" regarding all "major Federal actions

significantly affecting the quality of the human environment .... "42 U.S.C. §

4332(2)(C). This statement--known as an Environmental Impact Statement ("EIS")--

must describe (1) the "environmental impact of the proposed action," (2) any "adverse

environmental effects which cannot be avoided should the proposal be implemented," (3)

any "alternatives to the proposed action," and (4) any "irreversible or irretrievable

commitment of resources which would be involved in the proposed action should it be

implemented." ld.

31. "Major Federal actions" includes "actions with effects that may be major

and which are potentially subject to Federal control and responsibility," including "new

and continuing activities...[and] projects.., regulated or approved by federal

agencies." 40 C.F.R. § 1508.18. "Significantly," takes into account both the context and

intensity of a proposed action. See id. § 1508.27. The intensity of an action's impacts



involves several factors, including: "[w]hether the action is related to other actions with

individually insignificant but cumulatively significant impacts ...."/d. § 1508.27(b)(7).

32. To determine whether or not to prepare an EIS for a permit issued under §

404 of the CWA, the Corps prepares an Environmental Assessment ("EA"). 40 C.F.R. §§

1501.3-1501.4; 33 C.F.R. § 230.7.

33. Such an EA "should include a briegdiscussion of the need for the

proposed action, or appropriate alternatives if there are unresolved conflicts concerning

alternative uses of available resources, of the environmental impacts of the proposed

action and alternatives and a list of the agencies, interested groups and the public

consulted." 33 C.F.R. § 230.10

34. If after taking a hard look at the environmental impacts in its EA, the

agency concludes that the action will not have a significant effect on the human

environment, it may issue a Finding of No Significant Impact ("FONSI"), and is not

required to prepare an EIS. 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(e).

35. If an EIS must be prepared, it must include an analysis of direct and

indirect environmental "effects" of the proposed action, including "cumulative" impacts

and "cumulative actions." 40 C.F.R. §§ 1502.16, 1508.8, 1508.25(a)(2). A "'cumulative

impact' is the impact on the environment which results from the incremental impact of

the action when added to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions

regardless of what agency (Federal or non-Federal) or person undertakes such other

actions." 40 C.F.R. § 1508.7. "Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but

collectively significant actions taking place over a period of time." Id. Cumulative actions

are actions "which when viewed with other proposed actions have cumulatively
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significant impacts and should therefore be discussed in the same impact statement." Id. §

1508.25(a)(2).

36. Under 40 C.F.R. § 1506.1, an agency may not take an action that will have

an adverse environmental impact while it is preparing an EIS on that action.

FACTS

37. On January 15, 2002, the Corps published notice in the Federal Register

that NWP 21 would be reissued for five years, effective March 18, 2002.67 Fed. Reg.

2020.

38. The Corps issued NWP 21 without preparing an EIS under NEPA. 67

Fed. Reg. at 2025. On June 23, 1998, the Corps issued a FONSI which concluded that

the NWP program "will not have significant individual or cumulative adverse effects on

the quality of the human environment and the preparation of an Environmental Impact

Statement is not required." This conclusion is inconsistent with the overwhelming

weight of scientific evidence and is clearly erroneous.

39. The Corps prepared a "voluntary" programmatic draft EIS (DPEIS) for the

NWP program. The data in the DPEIS indicated that in calendar year 2000 alone, NWP

21 authorized 264 surface mining projects impacting over 87 miles of streams, NWP 21

impacts accounted for the majority of total NWP impacts, and most of these NWP 21

impacts occurred in the Corps' Huntington District alone. The DPEIS was inadequate to

satisfy the Corps' NEPA obligations because it was not completed before the Corps'

January 15, 2002 decision, failed to consider all direct, indirect and cumulative impacts to

the environment, improperly limited its analysis to impacts on aquatic resources, failed to

analyze adequately the effectiveness of mitigation measures, and inadequately analyzcd
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impacts of NWP 21. The PEIS mentions NWP 21 on only eleven pages and limits its

discussion of that permit to a single paragraph.

40. At the time of its January 15, 2002 decision, the Corps had available to it a

large amount of data used for preparing the draft programmatic EIS on Mountaintop

Mining/Valley Fills in Appalachia (MM/VF DEIS). That data showed that activities

covered by NWP 21 have had, and are likely to continue to have, more than minimal

adverse environmental effects, both individually and cumulatively, as defined in 33

U.S.C. § 1344(e), and significant effects on the human environment, as defined in 42

U.S.C. § 4332(C). For example, this data showed that mining and associated valley fills

are causing unprecedented and major permanent impacts on aquatic and terrestrial

ecosystems in Appalachia, including the elimination of hundreds of thousands of acres of

forests, including habitat for dozens of threatened and endangered species, the burial and

destruction of hundreds of miles of headwater streams, and the impairment of chemical

and biological indicators in waters downstream from fills.

41. The MM/VF DEIS issued in May 2003 confirms that valley fills arc

having significant, and more than minimal, cumulative adverse effects on the

environment. According to this DEIS:

a. Two percent (1,208 miles ) of streams in Appalachia have already been

buried or harmed, and an equivalent amount will be harmed if present

trends continue over the next ten years.

b. Valley fills are strongly associated with violations of water quality

standards for selenium, a toxic metal that bioaccumulates in aquatic life.
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All 66 selenium violations were downstream from valley fills, and no

other tested sites had selenium violations.

c. Mountaintop mining causes "fundamental changes to the terrestrial

environment," and "significantly affect[s] the landscape mosaic," with

post-mining conditions "drastically different" from pre-mining conditions.

Mining impacts on the nutrient cycling function of headwater streams "are

of great concern." Mining impacts to habitat of interior forest bird species

have "extreme ecological significance." Mining could impact 244

terrestrial species, including, for example, 1.2 billion salamanders. The

loss of this genetic diversity "would have a disproportionately large

impact on the total aquatic genetic diversity of the nation."

d. Past, present, and future mining in Appalachia may cumulatively impact

1,408,372 acres, or 11.5% of the study area.

42. NWP 2 l is not limited to "similar activities" and instead applies equally to

valley fills and surface impoundments, even though those two structures have

significantly different environmental impacts. Valley fills are composed of solid

materials, while surface impoundments often contain millions of gallons of liquid and

semi-liquid materials. These activities, which are not similar in nature, may not both be

authorized pursuant to Nationwide Permit 21. 44 U.S.C 1344 (e)(1).

43. NWP 21 is inconsistent with other NWPs because it imposes no limit on

the amount of streams that can be filled. Some existing and proposed mines in Wcst

Virginia have single valley fills that bury more than 6,000 feet of streams.
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44. The Corps' minimal impact determination for NWP 21 is also erroneous

because it failed to consider all non-aquatic environmental impacts, relied on future,

unidentified corrective actions to mitigate impacts, including regional conditions that do

not consider nationwide cumulative impacts, and otherwise failed to support its

determination with substantial evidence or reasoned decision-making.

45. The Corps has issued, or is threatening to issue, NWP 21 authorizations

for numerous mining-related projects in West Virginia that will have significant, and

more than minimal, adverse environmental effects, both individually and cumulatively.

46. Exhibit A to this Complaint shows the individual and cumulative impacts

to several watersheds in West Virginia as a result of surface mining activities. Although

the Exhibit analyzes only several watersheds in West Virginia and does not include all if

the mines in the watersheds analyzed, the impacts of past, ongoing and proposed mines in

those watersheds are more than minimal individually and cumulatively. For example, in

just the Pond Fork of the Little Coal River, already authorized mines and pending

authorizations would "impact" more than 15,650 acres of the watershed.

47. Among the fill activities that are of particular concern to Plaintiffs are

those listed in Exhibit A and those related to the following surface mining operations:
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F_ermittee Mine SMCRA #

Callisto Coal Co Callisto Surface s500900

IndependenceCoal Falcon Surface Mine s400500
HorizonResources Cook Mtn Mine s501594
MingoLogan Coal Phoenix 3 s501598
CoalMac Inc Phoenix 4 s501301
CoalMac Inc Phoenix 5 s502701
RoadFork Dev Co Rockhouse Branch s501798

Kingston Resources Horse Creek s301599
E k Run Coa Co Black Castle Contour s502300

Independence Coal Laxare East s501200
IFolaCoal Co Fola 4a s200502

Loadout, LLC Cherry Tree Hollow Refuse o501800
Loadout LLC Bull Creek Refuse 0502601
Loadout LLC Locust Fork Surface $502301
Loadout LLC Nellis Mine s504090

Green Valley Coal Co Blue Branch Refuse Area 0001083
Scholl, Tom L. Rush Creek Surface s300499
Hanna Land Company Republic No 1 s302500
Hanna Land Company Republic No 2 s300101
Hanna Land Company Republic No 3 s301203
Independence Coal Co Edwight Surface s301299
Consol of Kentucky WV Surface Mine No s500402
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CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT ONE

48. Defendants' conclusion that NWP 21 will have only minimal individual

and cumulative adverse effects on the environment, as required by 33 U.S.C. § 1344(e),

is arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and otherwise not in accordance with law,

in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Additionally, Defendants' conclusion that

the activities carried out pursuant to NWP21 are similar in nature, as required by 33

U.S.C. 1344(e), is arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and otherwise not in

accordance with law, in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Because the

activities permitted under NWP 21 will result in the destruction of hundreds of miles

streams, and hundreds of thousands of acres of forests, the adverse effects are necessarily

more than minimal, and because the activities carried out under NWP 21 are not similar

in nature, NWP 21 is an unlawful regulatory method for authorizing discharges resulting

from large scale surface mining operations.

COUNT TWO

49. Defendants' authorization of activities, pursuant to NWF' 21, relating to

the permits identified in Exhibit A and in paragraph 47 above under NWP 21 is arbitrary,

capricious, and contrary to 33 U.S.C. § 1344(e) and other applicable law, in violation of

the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A), insofar as those authorizations will have more than

minimal individual and cumulative adverse effects on the environment and insofar as

Defendants have not assured that the environmental impacts of the mining operations

have been avoided, minimized or mitigated.
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COUNT THREE

50. Defendants did not comply with the 404(b)(1) Guidelines, 40 C.F.R. Part

230, in issuing NWP 2t, and thus their actions were arbitrary, capricious, and contrary to

those regulations, the Clean Water Act, and other applicable law. Furthermore,

Defendants' issuance of NWP 21 was premature insofar as the Corps failed to follow

procedures required by those laws. Despite the Guidelines' express requirement that the

evaluation be completed before the permit is issued, 40 C.F.R. § 230.7(b), Defendants

admit, in the Proposal to Reissue and Modify Nationwide Permits, that at the time of

permit issuance they were still gathering data to understand the effects of valley fills on

the aquatic ecosystem, 66 Fed. Reg. 42,070, 42076 (Aug. 9, 2001). Furthermore,

Defendants abandoned the 250-acre threshold adopted in the Southern District of West

Virginia in the ..Braggsettlement agreement without any data or other information

showing that valley fills larger than 250 acres will not have more than minimal adverse

environmental impact. Accordingly, the issuance of NWP 21 without this information

was arbitrary, capricious, and contrary to law, in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. §

706(2)(A).

COUNT FOUR

51. Defendants' mitigation requirements for activities authorized pursuant to

NWP 21 are arbitrary, capricious, and in violation of law. The NWP 21 authorization

process adopted by the Corps impermissibly allows in-lieu fee arrangements as

compensatory mitigation. This type of mitigation does not minimize or mitigate the

damage from surface mines. It does nothing to replace the stream miles lost to the

mining. Additionally, the Corps impermissibly attempts to minimize more than minimal
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adverse environmental impacts through its NWP 21 mitigation policy. The Corps may

not rely on mitigation, in the context of a nationwide permit, to reduce more than

minimal impacts to minimal impacts. Insofar as NWP 21 allows the Corps to consider

mitigation required by OSM or a state agency under SMCRA or the Clean Water Act in

assessing the need for as well as the level and type of mitigation to ensure that no more

than minimal adverse effects to the aquatic environment occur, the Corps has unlawfully

abdicated and illegally delegated its duty to ensure that activities authorized by general

permits have only minimal individual and cumulative effects. Such delegation is

arbitrary, capricious, and contrary to law, in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A),

because the Corps has no mechanism to ensure that mitigation actually occurs.

COUNT FIVE

52. Defendants' 1998 and 2000 FONSIs were arbitrary, capricious, and

contrary to law, in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A), because ',he issuance of

NWP 21 is a major federal action that will significantly affect the quality of the human

environment, and thus Defendants were required to perform an EIS pursuant to NEPA,

42 U.S.C. § 4332(C) (2000), before the permit was issued.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Plaintiffs respectfully request this Court to grant the following relief:

1. Declare that Defendants' January 15, 2002 re-issuance of NWP 21 is

contrary to section 404(e) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1344(e), and its

implementing regulations, and is arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion and

otherwise not in accordance with law.
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2. Declare that Defendants' 1998 and 2000 FONSIs was arbitrary,

capricious, an abuse of discretion, in violation of NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C), and

otherwise not in accordance with law.

3. Declare that Defendants' failure to prepare an EIS before it reissued NWP

21 is contrary to NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C), and the CEQ's implementing

regulations, and is, therefore, arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, and otherwise

contrary to law.

4. Declare that Defendants' issuance of Nationwide 21 does not comply with

the 404(b)(1) guidelines, 40 C.F.R. Part 230, and is therefore arbitrary, capricious, an

abuse of discretion, and otherwise contrary to law.

5. Declare that in-lieu-fee mitigation and mitigation agreements allowing

coal operators to "recreate" streams as mitigation are arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of

discretion, and otherwise contrary to law.

6. Declare that the Corps may not use mitigation plans to justify authorizing,

pursuant to NWP 21, activities that will have more than minimal adverse environmental

impacts on the environment.

7. Enjoin Defendants from authorizing, pursuant to NWP 21, further disposal

of mining rock, dirt or coal refuse into valley fills associated with surface mining

activities or other discharges of mining waste into waters of the United States.

8. Enjoin Defendants from authorizing, pursuant to NWP 2l, further

discharges associated with the individual mining permits named in this Complaint or in

Exhibit A.
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9. Enjoin Defendants from authorizing Section 404 discharges for which

they have not 1) required sufficient mitigation; 2) required minimization of impacts by

the proposed mining operation; and 3) thoroughly considered alternatives to the proposed

activities or required the mining operation to avoid environmental impacts.

10. Enjoin Defendants from authorizing activities pursuant to NWP 21 in

reliance on mitigation to attempt to reduce or justify more than minimal impacts to the

aquatic ecosystem.

11. Enjoin Defendants from authorizing further discharges pursuant to NWP

21 until they have completed an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for NWP 21 that

complies with NEPA.

12. Enjoin Defendants from using in-lieu-fee mitigation agreements and from

allowing mining operators to "recreate" streams as mitigation for stream loss.

13. Award Plaintiffs their costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys'

and expert witness' fees, as authorized by 28 U.S.C. § 2412(d)(2).(A); and

14. Grant Plaintiffs such other and further relief as this Court deems

appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

W. BARRETT

Appalachian Center for the Economy and the
Environment

227 Capitol Street, Suite 400
Charleston, WV 25301
(304) 414-3000

JOSEPH M. LOVETT

Appalachian Center for the Economy and the
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Environment
P.O. Box 507

Lewisburg, WV 24901
(304) 645-9006

JAMES M. HECKER

Trial Lawyers for Public Justice
1717 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W., Suite 800
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 797-8600

Counsel for Plaintiffs
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